-"-..Q"‘-—l
HALTON Mersey Gateway Executive Board

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Thursday, 28 January 2010 3.00 p.m. or
at the rise of Executive Board in the

Marketing Suite, Municipal Building

Chief Executive

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Tony McDermott Labour
(Chairman)

Councillor Rob Polhill Labour
Councillor Mike Wharton Labour

Please contact Lynn Derbyshire on 0151 471 7389 or e-mail
lynn.derbyshire@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Board is on Thursday, 18 March 2010



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No.
1. MINUTES
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item.

3. PROGRESS TOWARDS A SECRETARY OF STATE
DECISION ON THE PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND THE
COUNCIL'S PREPARATION FOR PROCUREMENT.

PART Il

ITEMS CONTAINING “EXEMPT” INFORMATION FALLING
WITHIN SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT
1972 AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO
INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the press and
public but, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, it
is RECOMMENDED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, having been satisfied that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

4. LAND ASSEMBLY PROGRESS AND LAND ACQUISITION
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET FORECAST 2010/11

Page No.

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

REPORT TO: Mersey Gateway Exec Board

DATE: 28 January 2010

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment
SUBJECT: Progress towards a Secretary of State

Decision on the Planning Applications
and the Council's Preparation for
Procurement.

WARDS: All Wards
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To advise members of the progress made since the last meeting of the
Board, towards securing the authority required to commence the
procurement process.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Mersey Gateway Executive Board:

(1) note the progress made and the revised outlook for commencing
procurement later this year; and

(2) note the development budget estimated to be required to deliver
the Conditional Funding submission to the Department for
Transport and to undertake all necessary preparation to enable
procurement to commence as soon as Conditional Approval is
granted by Ministers

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 At the meeting of the last Mersey Gateway Executive Board on 19
November, Members were advised that the formal procurement process
for a Mersey Gateway concession contract can only commence once the
Council has secured the planning decision by the Secretaries of State
and for Ministers to grant Conditional Funding Approval.

3.2 At that time Ministers had advised that the Public Inquiry Inspector’s
Report was expected to be with the Department in mid-December. The
Minister gave this information in his response to an oral question in
Parliament raised by Derek Twigg MP.

3.3 Towards the end of December the project team contacted the Planning
Inspectorate (PINS) to determine if the report had been forwarded to the
Department. We were advised that it was envisaged that the Department
would not receive the report until the end of January 2010. The situation
is being monitored and any new information will be reported orally at the
meeting.



3.4

3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 2

We remain optimistic that the Secretary of State will announce a decision
before a General Election in May but this may not be the case.
Consequently, we have raised concerns over the impact of such a delay
with senior officials at the Department and we have agreed a modified
programme based on the decision being announced by the end of May
with contingency arrangements should this not take place until later in
2010.

In our discussions with the Department we have also agreed the
procedure for considering the Conditional Funding Approval. This agreed
procedure is reflected in the programme appended at Annex 1. When we
concluded the Inquiry last July it was reasonable to expect being able to
commence procurement in April this year (2010). This may not now be
the case.

The first draft of the Outline Business Case has been submitted to the
Department and discussed with the DfT Major Projects Team at the
progress meeting on 19 November. Key issues emerging from the
progress meeting were then considered further in a meeting between the
Council Chief Executive and John Dowie, the Department for Transport
Director responsible for Major Projects and Local and Regional policy.
The main issue to be agreed with the Department over the next few
weeks is the revised procurement approach that can be expected to
secure best value from the proposed tolling regime. Options under
consideration will require the PFI Credits to be increased in return for a
greater public sector financial interest in the toll revenue which overall
could result in a better deal for the public sector. Draft proposals are due
to be put to the Department for Transport Internal Investment Committee
in February and the outcome is expected to be available to be reported
to members at the next meeting of the MGEB in March.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The project is a key priority for the Council which will deliver benefits
locally and across the wider region.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Members will be kept advised of any change in the risk or funding
position as draft proposals are agreed with Department officials.

The delay in commencing procurement combined with an issue relating
to the way we account for the development budget has increased the
short term financial risks.

The outturn expenditure for the development costs in the current
financial year is expected to be £4.8m and the budget for the first half of
next year, to enable the Council to prepare for procurement, is estimated



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Page 3

at £2.5m. This further work is based on the programme agreed with DfT
and attached at annex 1. These amounts are now being treated as
revenue expenditure for reasons explained below.

The Council has capitalised the development costs for the Mersey
Gateway project since 2001/2 and this accounting treatment had been
accepted by the District Auditor. However, as part of the audit of the
2007/8 accounts the District Auditor queried our accounting approach. It
was his view that the costs should be treated as revenue expenditure. It
was agreed with the District Auditor that the costs should continue to be
capitalised in 2007/8 accounts without qualification and that we would
seek external advice on the proper accounting treatment. The advice
from KPMG was that the development costs, in all probability, should be
charged to revenue.

In addition, KPMG also advised that the Council should make an
application to Government for capitalisation direction for the full costs of
the project. If successful this would override accounting convention.
After extensive discussion involving Ministers and cross government
departments the result of the application was that the Council received
approval to capitalise £3.7m of the total development cost of £6.7m
incurred in 2008/9 with the balance being met from a Department
contribution to development cost of £3m being paid as a resource cost
grant instead of the normal capital grant.

The solution did not however extend to future years, including the current
year, and we were advised strongly by government officials that any
more requests for capitalisation would be unlikely to be successful.

It had been recognised that the accounting treatment of the Mersey
Gateway development costs may become an issue. Accordingly the
Capital Reserve had been protected as far as possible by funding capital
expenditure from capital receipts where required. Despite its name the
Capital Reserve is treated as revenue since its source of funding was
contributions from revenue.

The Capital Reserve currently totals £9.1m and when combined with the
outstanding £3.4m grant from DfT towards development costs, will
provide the funding required for the current year (£4.8M)and the budget
for the first half of next year (£2.5m), up to securing Conditional Funding
Approval, whereupon it would be appropriate to reinstate capitalisation
accounting for further expenditure required to complete procurement.

Members should however note that although the £3.4m grant from DfT
has been agreed in principle, we have requested that it is paid as a
resource grant, in full, on securing Conditional Funding Approval and
there is a risk that this request will be turned down. In the event that we
are turned down alternative measures to reduce the impact on revenue
budgets are under investigation and would be brought forward for
consideration of the MGEB.



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1

Page 4

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES
Children and Young People in Halton

There will be an indirect contribution to contribute to Key Objective E: To
ensure that all children and young people in Halton have positive futures
after school by embracing life-long learning, employment opportunities
and enjoying a positive standard of living.

Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton

There will be an indirect contribution to Key Objective B: To develop a
culture where learning is valued and to raise skill levels throughout the
adult population and in the local workforce.

A Healthy Halton

There will be opportunities for biodiversity activities to contribute to Key
Objective C: To promote a healthy living environment and lifestyles to
protect the health of the public, sustain individual good health and well-
being, and help prevent and efficiently manage iliness.

A Safer Halton

There will be opportunities to contribute to Key Objective C: To create
and sustain better neighbourhoods that are well designed, well built, well
maintained, safe and valued by the people who live in them, reflecting
the priorities of residents.

Halton’s Urban Renewal

There will be opportunities to contribute to Key Objective E: To enhance,
promote and celebrate the quality of the built and natural environment in
Halton. Tackling the legacy of contamination and dereliction to further
improve the Borough’'s image. In particular, in Area of Focus 12,
examples of future planned activity include “Creating local nature
reserves and wild spaces that support the Council’s efforts to deliver
urban renewal and a better quality of life in Halton”. The Mersey
Gateway nature reserve will be a main delivery mechanism for this Area
of Focus.

RISK ANALYSIS

The project plan now assumes a decision on the planning process will be
delayed until after a General Election next Spring. The process we have
agreed with DfT officials is aimed at mitigating the risk of delay and puts
in place a realistic programme that could see procurement commencing



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

Page 5

towards the end of the year (2010).
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to
services, education and employment for all.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Files maintained by the Mersey Gateway Project Team and by the
Highways and Transportation Department.



Mersey Gateway

Project Programme - Stages 3 to 5

("Optimistic")
ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
o AMJJASONDJFMAMJJA}SONDJFMAMJJA O/N/D|JIFIMIAIM|J|J|A|S|O|IN|D|J|FIM/IAIM|J|J|/A|SIOINID|J|FIMIAIM|J|J|A|SIOIN|ID|J|FIM/IA|M|J|J|A|S|ON|D

1 PROJECT PLAN STAGE 2 (END OF) 336 days Tue 19/05/09  Tue 31/08/10 INNNENEEERENNENENENENERENRENERERRERERERE l. PROJECT PLAN STAGE 2 (END OF)
2 STATUTORY POWERS 336 days Tue 19/05/09  Tue 31/08/10 .Jmmmmm' STATUTORY POWERS
3 " Start of Public Inquiry 0 days Tue 19/05/09  Tue 19/05/09 Start of Public Inquwy : P : . :
4 e Public Inquiry 52 days Tue 19/05/09 Wed 29/07/09 3 ubllc Inqu|ry
5 W Close of Public Inquiry 0 days Wed 29/07/09 Wed 29/07/09 4 Close of Public E:nquiry
6 Inspector writes report 122 days Thu 30/07/09 Fri 15/01/10 spector writes report
7 E PINS sends report to DfT 0 days Fri 15/01/10 Fri 15/01/10 6 INS sends report to DIT
8 TWA Unit review for SoS decision (for end 95 days Mon 18/01/10 Fri 28/05/10 7 WA Unit review for SoS deC|5|on (for end May "quick decision")
9 E SoS's decision 0 days Fri 28/05/10 Fri 28/05/10 8 0S's dec|5|on
10 Statutory challenge periods (vary) (RUCO i 67 days Mon 31/05/10  Tue 31/08/10 9 tatutory challenge perlods (vary) (RUCO is Iongest)
11 Confirmation of orders 0 days Tue 31/08/10 Tue 31/08/10 10 L_'.‘ Conflrmatlon of orders ‘ ‘
12 . | . |
13 PROJECT PLAN STAGE 3 1612 days Mon 03/08/09 Tue 06/10/15 .J_I_I_I_I_LLLI_LLLLLIlllllllllllll‘lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll[.pRoJ
14 DfT MSB CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 232 days Mon 02/11/09  Tue 21/09/10 .l 11 H ITTITTIIT T TTTTIT T l. DfT MSB CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
15 E Submit first draft OBC to DfT 0 days Mon 02/11/09  Mon 02/11/09 ubmlt first draft OBC to DIT
16 Develop and finalise OBC / dialogue with D 75 days Mon 02/11/09 Fri 12/02/10 15 evelop and finalise OBC / d|a|ogue w|th DfT
17 Final OBC submission 0 days Fri 12/02/10 Fri 12/02/10 16 inal OBC submlsswn
18 Final DfT review of OBC 20 days Mon 15/02/10 Fri 12/03/10 17 ina‘l DfT review|of OBC
19 Investment Decision Committee (for 'subjec 10 days Mon 15/03/10 Fri 26/03/10 18 E Inv tment Decision Commlttee (for subject to orders’ approval)
20 HBC check effect of SoS decision / orders . 30 days Mon 31/05/10 Fri 09/07/10 9 C check effect of SoS decision / orders / plannlng
21 Investment Decision Committee (approval i 10 days Mon 12/07/10 Fri 23/07/10 20 vestment DeCISIOI'I Commlttee (approval in pI’II'ICIple)E
22 DfT Minister (approval in principle) 10 days Mon 26/07/10 Fri 06/08/10 21 § DIT Mlnlster (approval in prlnCIpIe) ‘
23 HMT Chief Secretary (approval in principle) 10 days Mon 09/08/10 Fri 20/08/10 22 HMT Chief Secretary (approval in prlnCIpIe)
24 Confirmation of Conditional Approval (DfT) 0 days Tue 21/09/10 Tue 21/09/10 30FS+1 day Conflrmatlon of Condltlonal Approval (DFT)
25 GATEWAY 2 - PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 5 days Mon 05/07/10 Fri 09/07/10 . G TEWAY 2- PROCUREMENT STRATEGY
26 L Gateway Review 2 5 days Mon 05/07/10 Fri 09/07/10 Ga way Review 2 ‘
27 PRG 1st STAGE REVIEW 36 days Mon 02/08/10  Tue 21/09/10 ]' PRG 1st STAGE REVIEW
28 L Submit OBC to PRG 0 days Mon 02/08/10  Mon 02/08/10 Submlt OoBC to PRG ‘
29 PRG Review period (min 7 weeks) 35 days Mon 02/08/10 Fri 17/09/10 28 L;. PRG ReV|ew perlod (mln 7 weeks)
30 E PRG 1st Stage Review (Meeting on 3rd 0 days Tue 21/09/10  Tue 21/09/10 29 RG 1st Stage Rewew (Meetlng on 3rd Tuesday)

Tuesday) P P :
31 PROCUREMENT PROCESS 679days  Mon 01/03/10  Thu 04/10/12 PROCUREMENT PROCESS
32 E PROCUREMENT STAGE 1: Planning and 155 days Mon 01/03/10 Fri 01/10/10 ROCUREMENT STAGE 1: Plannlng and preparatlon
33 L PROCUREMENT STAGE 2: OJEU Notice 35 days Mon 04/10/10 Fri 19/11/10 32 p ROCUREMENT STAGE 2: OJEU Notice and Prequallflcatlon period (bldders)
34 PROCUREMENT STAGE 3: Selection of b 40 days Mon 22/11/10 Fri 14/01/11 33 ROCUREMENT STAGE 3 SeIectlon of bldders (prequal evaluatlon)
35 PROCUREMENT STAGE 4.1: Dialogue St: 80 days Mon 17/01/11 Fri 06/05/11 34 ROCUREMENT STAGE 4 1: Dlalogue Stage 1 (ITPD)
36 PROCUREMENT STAGE 4.2: Dialogue St 165 days Mon 09/05/11 Fri 23/12/11 35 ._PROCUREMENT STAGE 4. 2 D|alogue Stage 2 (ITCD)
37 PROCUREMENT STAGE 5: Submission o 80 days Mon 26/12/11 Fri 13/04/12 36 p ROCUREMENT STAGE 5 Submlssmn of Final Tenders
38 PROCUREMENT STAGE 6: Bid clarificatio 30 days Mon 16/04/12 Fri 25/05/12 37 P ROCUREMENT STAGE 6: Bld clarlflcatlon
39 Select Preferred Bidder 0 days Fri 01/06/12 Fri 01/06/12 43FS+5 days,38 »ﬁelect Preferred Bldder
40 PROCUREMENT STAGE 7: Preferred Bidc 89 days Mon 04/06/12  Thu 04/10/12 39 : i ROCUREMENT STAGE 7: Preferred Bldder to Contract Award
41 CONTRACT AWARD (Financial Close) 0 days Thu 04/10/12  Thu 04/10/12 40 ONTRACT AWARD (Flnanclal Close)
42 DfT FINAL APPROVALS 90 days Fri 25/05/12 Fri 28/09/12 DT FINAL APPROVALS
43 DfT final funding approval (to proceed to Pr 0 days Fri 25/05/12 Fri 25/05/12 38 DT flnal funding approval (to proceed to Pref Bldder)
44 Prepare Final Business Case 55 days Mon 04/06/12 Fri 17/08/12 40SS epare F|naI Busmess Case b b | b
45 Submit Final Business Case (bid for Final / 0 days Fri17/08/12  Fri17/08/12 44 W Submit F|na| Busmess Case (b|d for Flnal Approval) 6 weeks before FC)
46 DIT review 30days  Mon20/08/12  Fri28/09/12 45 ‘ fTreview ‘
47 DfT Final Approval 0 days Fri 28/09/12 Fri 28/09/12 46 DfT F|na| Approval :
48 GATEWAY 3 - INVESTMENT DECISION 5 days Mon 06/08/12 Fri 10/08/12 . fGATEWAY 3- INVESTMENT DECISION
49 Gateway Review 3 5 days Mon 06/08/12 Fri 10/08/12 44FF-5 days | P P P P P fﬂ(-Ga eway ReV|ew 3 P |
50 PROJECT PLAN STAGE 4 1612days  Mon 03/08/09  Tue 06/10/15 .ﬂ‘rrrrrrrrrrrr ‘ EJllllllllll‘lll‘lllllllllll‘lllllllll‘lll‘llllll‘llIllllllll‘lll‘lllllllll:lll:lll:lllllI:II:IIIIIIIII:III:IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIllllIIIIIIIIIIlll[IIIIIIIIIllllIIIIIIIIIIlll[IIIIIIIII[[[[IIIIIII[.pRoJ
51 E Acquisitions by agreement 741 days Mon 03/08/09  Mon 04/06/12 AcquIsitioms by agreement o - o ‘ o o | o
52 GVD process and CPO'd acquisitions 458 days Wed 01/09/10 Fri 01/06/12 10 VD prooess and CPO d acqmsmons
53 Land assembly completion 0 days Fri 01/06/12 Fri 01/06/12 52 Land aés:embly completlon
54 Construction period (3 years) 783 days Fri 05/10/12  Tue 06/10/15 41
55 |
56 PROJECT PLAN STAGE 5: OPERATION (START) 0 days Tue 06/10/15  Tue 06/10/15 41 ;‘ PROJ
57 Scheme Opening 0 days Tue 06/10/15  Tue 06/10/15 54 -}‘ Schem

Task Split Progress I Milestone ‘ Summary .jjjjjjjjjj' Project Summary ﬁ External Tasks External Milestone ‘ Deadline @

MG_Project_Programme_Stages3to5_ver4OPTIMISTIC_Jan2010.mpp

Page 1

9 abed



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	3 Progress towards a Secretary of State Decision on the Planning Applications and the Council's Preparation for Procurement.
	ITEM 3 ANNEX 1

	4 Land Assembly Progress and Land Acquisition Capital Expenditure Budget Forecast 2010/11

